
 
 

Town of Hamilton  
Affordable Housing Trust  

MEETING AGENDA  
Thursday, May 1, 2025 at 6:00 pm  

 
This is a remote meeting. Participation is via the log -in information below only.  

No in-person meeting will  be held.  

 

Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87843151044?pwd=asaQQwvaogDNLdPVrnGL323epYu7rD.1 

 

Meeting ID: 878 4315 1044 

Passcode: 564557 

One tap mobile: +16469313860 

 

 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Review/approval of the Draft February 27, 2025 meeting minutes 

3. Authorization of Chair to sign Subordination of Mortgage for Essex County Habitat for 
Humanity affordable housing project at 436-438 Asbury Street in Hamilton 
 

4. Discussion of Hamilton’s HOME Funds allocation and potential vote on allocation of funds 

5. Other Business 

6. Adjournment  

 

 

NOTE: Items may be heard out of the listed order. The agenda items listed are those items which were reasonably anticipated by the 

Chair to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed on the agenda may be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought 

up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87843151044?pwd=asaQQwvaogDNLdPVrnGL323epYu7rD.1


1 
 

Hamilton Affordable Housing Trust 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING DRAFT 
 

Zoom Meeting  
 

February 27, 2025 
 

  
HAHT Members Present Online: Chair Jamie Knudsen, Suzanne Soffa, David Smith, and  
     Caroline Beaulieu   
 
Also Present:  Mark Connors, Planning Director; Jay Butler, Community 

Preservation Committee Chair; Meegan O’Neil, Habitat for 
Humanity; and Andrew Leonard, Harborlight Homes  

  
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL   
Affordable Housing Trust (AHT) Chair Jamie Knudsen called the Zoom-only meeting to order at 
approximately 6:30 p.m. and took a roll call. Present online were David Smith, Caroline Beaulieu, 
Suzanne Soffa, and Mr. Knudsen, constituting a full board.  
 
REVIEW/APPROVE MINUTES—SEPTEMBER 24, 2024  
Ms. Beaulieu made a motion to approve minutes from Aug. 20 and Sept. 24. Mr. Smith seconded the 
motion.  
DISCUSSION: 
Ms. Soffa noted that according to the September minutes, the AHT had approved the August 
minutes at the last meeting.  
DECISION: 
Ms. Beaulieu amended her motion to approve only the minutes from the Sept. 24, 2024 meeting. Ms. 
Soffa seconded the motion. A roll-call vote was taken with “ayes” from Mr. Smith, Ms. Beaulieu, Ms. 
Soffa, and Mr. Knudsen, (4-0) unanimous.  
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING UPDATES 
 

 434-436 ASBURY STREET (HABITAT FOR HUMANITY) 
Meegan O’Neil, Essex County Habitat for Humanity executive director, shared photos of the 
homes and discussed construction progress and information about the future occupants. 
The foundation is in for the one-bedroom units. The two-bedroom units and three-bedroom 
units that are part of Phase 1 are almost complete and should be ready for occupancy in 
May while the other units are expected to be ready in the fall. She said that while they had 
expected the one-bedroom homes to be occupied by seniors, they would be occupied by 20- 
and 30-year-old singles. She discussed home features, including energy efficiency. Ms. Soffa 
commented with a thank-you to Ms. O’Neil for the amazing work on the project. 

 
 ASBURY COMMONS (HARBORLIGHT)  

Andrew Leonard, assistant director of real estate development for Harborlight Homes, 
presented details regarding the 45-unit family affordable housing project with 29 units 



2 
 

restricted for families earning less than 60 percent of AMI and 16 units restricted for 
families earning less than 30 percent of AMI. He said Harborlight was awarded State 
funding and tax credits enabling them to start the first phase of construction in late fall. He 
credited AHT and CPC funding and Town commitment to the project for being able to 
leverage those dollars. For every $1 from the Town, he estimated $6 was received from the 
State. Two pieces now being worked on are construction drawings and securing the 
additional financing. Harborlight has applied for Hamilton’s local HOME funding and may 
apply for an additional CPC (Community Development Committee) grant. The expected 
completion date for the project is early 2027.  
 
Al de Groot, 193 Chebacco Road, inquired about the status of the Housing Production Plan 
(HPP) and asked if the two projects discussed would be included. Planning Director Mark 
Connors said he would be issuing the RFP (request for proposal) next month. Ms. Beaulieu 
said Asbury Commons had put the Town into safe harbor for nine months, but that expires 
in May. At that point, they will have to be breaking ground on another project to put them 
back into safe harbor (potentially one at Gordon-Conwell Theological Seminary). Mr. 
Knudsen asked about the chances of further delays for Asbury Commons. Mr. Leonard said 
there is uncertainty at the Federal level, but if things remain steady, they feel confident 
about closing on the property this year.  
 
CPC Chair Jay Butler noted that Harborlight Homes had previously requested $1M in 
funding with the CPC approving a $500K grant and the AHT contributing $250K leaving a 
$250K shortfall. Mr. Butler said that while the CPC has $250K in its reserves, that money is 
spread over several accounts. Currently in the Community Housing account, there is $0. 
After Town Meeting there will be $70K. He said the CPC keeps a potential project list with A, 
B, and C categories. There are no Category A projects at present. The only Category B 
project is Town Hall. The CPC has $500K earmarked for that if needed. The Category C 
projects include a recreation project for the tennis courts, Patton Park improvements, 
preservation of the Chebacco watershed, and the potential Asbury Commons ask. He said 
the CPC is at the limit of what it can bond. The only extra money coming in will be the State 
match, which is expected to be less than $100K. In summary, he said there was not much 
money available. The next time grants will be considered will be prior to the 2026 Annual 
Town Meeting (ATM). Mr. Leonard responded that Harborlight would not be able to make a 
grant request until they receive their updated numbers. He thanked Mr. Butler for the 
information.  

 
UPDATE ON HAMILTON’S HOME FUND APPLICATION 
Hamilton’s distribution from the North Shore Home Consortium totaled $16,541. If these HOME 
funds are not spent by the end of this fiscal year (June 2024), they will go back into the regional 
fund. Mr. Smith asked Ms. O’Neil if she was in a position to make a request on behalf of Habitat for 
Humanity for the funds. She said yes as they anticipate cost over-runs that the HOME funds could 
help to cover. Both Ms. O’Neil and Mr. Leonard expressed interest in making an ask on behalf of 
their respective projects.  
 
UPDATE ON FINANCIALS 
Mr. Knudsen said not much had changed since the last meeting. Mr. Connors said he would discuss 
the financials with the Finance Dept. and provide a report at the next meeting.  
 
Ms. Beaulieu bid farewell to the group. Her Select Board term (and therefore, liaison position on the 
AHT) is ending. Mr. Smith asked her for a Gordon-Conwell project update. She said the Seminary is 



3 
 

looking to sell 11 acres and set of dorms (209 units) on the lower campus and said there were 
nuances (involving zoning issues) to be worked out. There is a development agreement process 
about what might happen to the upper and middle campuses and there has been a lot of local 
involvement with abutters. They would be rezoning the lower campus and turning the dormitories 
into market-rate housing with 20 percent of them affordable at 80 percent AMI. They are hoping 
that would lead to getting the whole 209 units onto the Town SHI (subsidized housing inventory). 
They would not change the existing footprint of the dormitories. They would be deeded affordable 
in perpetuity. Ms. Soffa asked if there would be a Special Town Meeting (STM) for this since it 
would not make this year’s Annual Town Meeting (ATM) in April. The answer was yes, and that it 
would likely be in June, but it was unknown whether it would appear on the same agenda as the 3A 
compliance issue.  
 
Mr. Connors noted there will be an article on ADUs (accessory dwelling units) on the April ATM 
agenda.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Mr. Knudsen mentioned the AHT vacancy for an at-large member. 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
At 7:27 p.m., Ms. Beaulieu made a motion that the AHT adjourn. Ms. Soffa seconded the motion. A 
roll-call vote was taken with “ayes” from Mr. Smith, Ms. Beaulieu, Ms. Soffa, and Mr. Knudsen, (4-0) 
unanimous.  
 
Prepared by: 

Mary Alice Cookson  
AHT Minutes Secretary  
 
 
Respectfully submitted as approved at the _________ meeting by Mark Connors. Planning 
Director. 
 
Documents discussed at meeting:  

 Minutes of the 9/24/24 Meeting, Mary Alice Cookson  
 Habitat for Humanity project, PowerPoint slides of Construction progress, February 2025 
 Letter from Kevin Hurley, North Shore HOME Consortium to Mark Connors and Draft Distribution of Funds  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 SUBORDINATION OF MORTGAGE 

 

 

 Town of Hamilton Affordable Housing Trust Fund, holder of a Mortgage from 

Essex County Habitat for Humanity, to itself dated August 3, 2021 and recorded in Essex South 

District Registry of Deeds in Book 40148, Page 598, ("Subordinated Mortgage") hereby agrees 

that said mortgage and the obligations secured thereby shall be and hereby are subordinate and 

junior in right to a mortgage given by Essex County Habitat for Humanity to Institution for 

Savings and its Vicinity, dated May ______, 2025, in the original principal amount of 

$520,000.00 to be recorded herewith, and to future advances thereunder, to the same extent as if 

the latter mortgage had been executed and recorded and all advances made thereunder prior in 

time to the execution and recording of the subordinated mortgage. 

 Executed as a sealed instrument this          day of May, 2025. 

TOWN OF HAMILTON AFFORDABLE 

HOUSING TRUST FUND 

   

 

  By: _______________________________  

       James R. Knudsen 

       Chairman 
 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

Essex, ss 

 

 On this ____ day of May, 2025 before me the undersigned notary public, personally 

appeared James R. Knudsen, Chairman, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was a Massachusetts Driver’s License, to be the person whose name is 

signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he signed it 

voluntarily for its stated purpose on behalf of the Town of Hamilton Affordable Housing Trust 

Fund. 

 

        

 Notary Public 

 My commission expires:  



 

STAFF MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Affordable Housing Trust members 

FROM:  Mark Connors 

DATE:  April 29, 2025 

RE:  HOME Funds appropriation  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Hamilton has been awarded $16,541 in HOME Funds that must be appropriated by June 30, 

2025. Both Harborlight and Habitat for Humanity have submitted requests for the funds (see 

attached letters). Harborlight has requested funds to support the approved 45-unit Asbury 

Common affordable housing project. That project recently received a grant award from the 

Commonwealth and Harborlight anticipates construction to begin this year. Habitat for Humanity 

has requested funds for the 10-unit affordable housing project currently under construction and 

nearing completion at 436-438 Asbury Street.  

 

The Trust must appropriate the funds by June 30 or they will be reallocated to a region-wide 

application managed by the North Shore HOME Consortium. The Trust has the option to make a 

vote on the request tonight, though I do anticipate that the Trust will meet one more time before 

June 30 when the Select Board representative for the Trust should have been selected. 



�����

��������	
����������������������������������	��������������������������� ��!��"#���$���%�$�&'$(('�����%��)))�
�������	
�
������	�*���+,�-��.'(�������

������/0123456�7859:0;3<�/5=>26?�@9=>4�@5A6�BCD<>�04�E0F56�/51<>4<0:�GHI�7>;=9J�K49<<4�ELBL�M5N�OPQ�/0123456R�S7�ITQUG�7F6V�WX029�Y012<�Z6=:><6R�26�D09<�5[�S9L�S09\�W56659>��Y06=09J�PQR�PIPH��@5�S9L�Z6=:><6�06:�@9=>4�S<1;<9>R��B=9�]95]5><:�7>;=9J�W51156�]95̂<D4R�04�OGG�7>;=9J�K49<<4R�A233�D9<04<�OH�6<A�0859:0;3<�X51<>�26�/0123456L��733�=624>�A233�;<�26D51<_9<>492D4<:�9<6403>R�A24X�0�12N�5[�T_R�P_R�06:�U_;<:9551�=624>L��@X<�6<A�;=23:26?�A233�;<�X2?X3J�<6<9?J�<CD2<64R�E0>>2̀<�/5=><�D<9ab<:R�35A�A04<9�=>0?<R�06:�033_<3<D492D�X<0a6?�06:�D55326?L�/09;5932?X4�/51<>�2>�;54X�4X<�:<̀<35]<9�06:�4X<�356?_4<91�5A6<9�06:�1060?<9�5[�4X<�]95]<94JL��c<�09<�4X9233<:�45�0::�4X2>�X5=>26?�5]a56�A24X26�45A6R�AX2DX�A233�;926?�/0123456d>�]<9D<640?<�56�4X<�K404<�K=;>2:2e<:�/5=>26?�f6̀<6459J�gK/fh�[951�OLIij�45�0]]95N2104<3J�HLGjL��733�=624>�A233�D5=64�56�4X<�K/fR�06:�033�A233�;<�0859:0;3<�45�X5=><X53:>�04�59�;<35A�GIj�7Sf�g26�PIPOR�kQiRQPI�[59�0�[0123J�5[�[5=9hL��@X<�]95̂<D4�X0>�;<<6�]<912F<:�A24X�0�OIM�W51]9<X<6>2̀<�E<9124R�06:�4X<�><]aD�]306�X0>�;<<6�0]]95̀<:�;J�4X<�/0123456�M509:�5[�/<034XL��7>;=9J�W51156�A233�;<�b606D<:�;J�0�12N�5[�35D03R�>404<�06:�[<:<903�[=6:>R�35A_26D51<�X5=>26?�40N�D9<:24>R�]92̀04<�?9064>R�06:�D56̀<6a5603�:<;4L��7>�A<�0>><1;3<�4X2>�[=6:26?�4X95=?X�0̀925=>�0]]32D0a56�95=6:>R�A<�A5=3:�32\<�45�9<l=<>4�4X04�4X<�@5A6�5[�/0123456�D51124�4A5�J<09>�5[�24>�9<?=309�066=03�0335D0a56�5[�/BSm�[=6:>�45�7>;=9J�W51156L��734X5=?X�0�>1033�]<9D<640?<�5[�4X<�5̀<9033�]95̂<D4�D5>4�g0]]95N2104<3J�kUPLT�1233256hR�<093J�45A6�/BSm�[=6:26?�2>�̀<9J�21]594064�26�3<̀<90?26?�4X<�54X<9�[=6:26?�>5=9D<>�06:�:<156>490a6?�45A6�>=]]594�06:�]09aD2]0a56L��c24X�>24<�D564953�06:�]<9124�26�]30D<R�06:�:90A26?>�0:̀06D26?�[59�D56>49=Da56�9<0:26<>>R�A<�D56a6=<�45�]=9>=<�]95̂<D4�[=6:26?�26�4X<�D5126?�1564X>R�26D3=:26?V�� n�mB/oW�p=6:26?V�K=;12F<:�45�S262�q5=6:�26�K<]4<1;<9�PIPOR�<N]<Da6?�:<D2>256�06J�:0J��n�p<:<903�/51<�o506�M06\�5[�M5>456�r9064V�0A09:<:�ksHIRIII�?9064�06:�kU�1233256�26�264<9<>4�904<�>=;>2:J�56�]<9106<64�1594?0?<�n�t594X�KX59<�/BSm�W56>59a=1V�A233�>=;124�0]]32D0a56�26�p033�PIPH�[59�6<N4�95=6:�5[�[=6:26?�n�WEW�p=6:>V�0A09:<:�kiHIRIII�;J�/7/@�u�WEW��c<�06aD2]04<�X0̀26?�033�10̂59�[=6:26?�26�]30D<�;J�K]926?�PIPH�06:�;9<0\26?�?95=6:�26�304<�PIPHL��� �



�����

��������	
����������������������������������	��������������������������� ��!��"#���$���%�$�&'$(('�����%��)))�
�������	
�
������	�*���+,�-��.'(�������

������/012345�674184�9:5�1�6;<=42>�:1;;1?@4A�BC1D48A�1:5�2E;;4:>�FE5D4>G��H4�166;42B1>4�I<E;�2<:8B54;1?<:�1:5�8E66<;>�B:�F;B:DB:D�>3484�3BD3�JE17B>IA�1K<;51F74�3<C48�><�L1CB7><:A�1:5�M4�7<<N�O<;M1;5�><�>17NB:D�OE;>34;G��P31:N�I<EA�� �/:5;4M�Q4R;1:S1�TU42E?@4�QB;42><;�



�

� � ��

���������	

	��������������������������������� ��������!""#��$$��%��������&&����'�����'�(���!)��*)���%�+)��%�����$������,�����-�.�/�0����'��������(������(�����! #�12������3�$���,��������$����������������4������/��������-�$����)$�'����/��$$��%������$������,�����-�������/��,���&&����'�����'�(��������������5�����'����$��,��������1! #3�/�������$���,��������$�����������%����������$�!�������/�������$���678�,����,��%�����&&����%����&��9�(�)����%�'��(,����1�,�������-�����%����%�$���+"#����������%�/��/���%�-��%��������%%��������&��9�(�)����%�'��(,�����$��,��������'�������35���������4������/����&��'�%����&&����'�����'�(��������������%�������%�������$$�%���������)�����:���%�������'�(��4���%������5��
���������4������/���&�������%���%���4,�&�����";��/��,���������������&�����%�&����(�&������$�����,����/����%����-,����5��<,����/�������&&�������%�&��������-����(��&����5��<,��&��&���%���&��(��������,���������&&��'�%�����,�����������;���%��$������,�1��/��������'�������35����������-,��,�������&������-������������,��&��&�������%�,��������(������5������������������$$������(���������/��,������-��(,��������%��������4������/��������-��,����/������&&��=�������� 5#�����,����85��<,���&��9�(��/�������>?@AB@CDEFGHI�JD@IG�K?IIDLM�>BNIM�OM@GDJDMP�Q@BRMOGS��TN@�EB?C�DI�GB�O@M?GM�INIG?DU?ACM�FBVMI�WFDCM�?CIB���%�(��-����-)������&������-��=&�����5��X��,���(������������$�0����'����������(��������&��&�������Y�%����)���(���(�,����&��&���6:Z�$���,��������%�����������,�����$��/��/�����������(��$���������,����,��,�����$�������%�����/,���������(���������-��&������-��=&�����5��6��(���(�'�,�(���16Z3�(,��-��-�/�������������'�������5�



� � ��

� � ��

��������	

	����������	������	�������������	������������������������������	�����
������	
��������������	�������	���	��� �
��	�!����������������"�������	�������������	�����������#�����$$%�&'(()*+,-�.*'/*�01�2345�6+77085�0,�90*,5:;:''.�<0:(=�	��	�������������	����������
������	������������������>	��������������?!� �
��	���	�������
�����	���	����������	

���������	���������	�@���������	��������	�A�B	����C�D!���EF���	���
�����������������������A�	���������������A����������G�A�����������������������F���	���������!��H����	���
����������������	

������		
���������I��������������@����		
��������������	���������		�!��������������������
F�	��	�������		
�>CJ?����	�����		
�>�K?���������������		
�>CJ?!����������
F����	�������	����	

	�����
����������	���	����	��������������A���������������		
��
���	��������@�������������
!�� �H������	���	��	���A����������	

	��������	@������@�����	����������������������������������������	������B����������@�����		�����	�!�������������	����
�����	�
	����������	�������	����@���������������������
��������������	���A�������@�����������@�������A	���!��������	"������������������
�����	

��������������	�����		�������	�����������	�����������������������	A��

�A��	��������������������!��������	A��

�A��	��������������	����������������		����	A��
��������������������������������������������	���E�L�����������	������A�������	

�����A������A!���������������@�A������������	

	��/+77�40M5�,45�'NN':,)*+,-�,'�,0.5�0OM0*,085�'P�Q0(+7,'*RS5*40(T1�1,:'*8�N);7+&�1&4''71U��
��B�
���A������A��������	�����������	���� V�E���������	
����� �
��	�����	������� 	���A�������������A	���� V�E���������	
�����W	������	��� V�E��	��	���
�����������������
�����������������J�K!��X���������������������A�EV L�������A����	�A���������
�����J������B	�������
��	�!� 	��@������������	

	�������������������������Y L��	���	��	��A�����������������������������������Z�����J����	���!��������������[����\#�!C�
��	���	��\]C#�###��������!��̂_̀abcd�ebfgh���	��	�i� ���	��A��� 	
�����������i��j�[��A���@��E�A�����Ai� ���	�G����	����������������E�A�����Ai�k�����	��E�A�����A�E�@��	���l�k���@�� 	�����	��������i�B[ �m��������	������	�i�X��	@����	�������	���





 
 
February 28, 2025 
 
 
Dear Members of the Hamilton Affordable Housing Trust: 
 
Essex County Habitat for Humanity requests the allocation of your locally allotted HOME funds 
in the amount of $16,541 for FY 24 for our project located at 434-436 Asbury Street. 
 
As you know, Habitat is building ten deed-restricted affordable homes on the site.  These 
homes will be built as duplexes, and include 4 three-bedroom units, 2 two-bedroom units, and 
4 one-bedroom units. As construction costs have risen on this project, the additional support 
for the project would provide much needed relief for the cost-escalation that has occurred 
since we began the project in 2021. 
 
We deeply appreciate your support on this project and we look forward to welcoming ten new 
neighbors to the community this year! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Meegan O’Neil 
Executive Director 
 
 




